
 

 

 
APOLOGIES Committee Services   

Tel. 01621 876232   

    

Council Chamber 01621 859677   

   HEAD OF PAID SERVICE’S OFFICE 
   HEAD OF PAID SERVICE 

Richard Holmes 
    
   30 August 2019 

 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are summoned to attend the meeting of the; 
 
SOUTH EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 
on MONDAY 9 SEPTEMBER 2019 at 7.30 pm. 
 
in the Burnham Town Council Offices, Chapel Road, Burnham-on-Crouch. 
 
A copy of the agenda is attached. 

 

Yours faithfully 

 
Head of Paid Service 

 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP CHAIRMAN Councillor R P F Dewick 

 VICE-CHAIRMAN Councillor M W Helm 
   

 COUNCILLORS M G Bassenger 

B S Beale MBE 

V J Bell 

R G Boyce MBE 

Mrs P A Channer, CC 

A S Fluker 

A L Hull 

N J Skeens 

W Stamp 

 
 

Please note: Limited hard copies of this agenda and its related papers will be available at the meeting. Electronic 

copies are available via the Council’s website. 

Unrestricted Document Pack



 

THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK



 

Page 3 

For further information please call 01621 876232 or 875791 

or see the Council's website – www.maldon.gov.uk. 

AGENDA 

SOUTH EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

MONDAY 9 SEPTEMBER 2019 

 

1. Chairman's notices (please see overleaf)   

 

2. Apologies for Absence   

 

3. Minutes of the last meeting  (Pages 7 - 10) 

 

 To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 12 August 2019, 

(copy enclosed). 

 

4. Disclosure of Interest   

 

 To disclose the existence and nature of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, other 

Pecuniary Interests or Non-Pecuniary Interests relating to items of business on the 

agenda having regard to paragraphs 6-8 inclusive of the Code of Conduct for Members. 

 

(Members are reminded that they are also required to disclose any such interests as 

soon as they become aware should the need arise throughout the meeting). 

 

5. FUL/MAL/18/00381 - Millfields Caravan Park, Millfields, Burnham-on-Crouch, 

Essex  (Pages 11 - 32) 

 

 To consider the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance (copy 

enclosed, Members’ Update to be circulated)*. 
 

6. FUL/MAL/19/00656 - Mangapp Manor, Southminster Road, Burnham-on-

Crouch, Essex  (Pages 33 - 44) 

 

 To consider the report of the Director of Strategy, Performance and Governance (copy 

enclosed, Members’ Update to be circulated)*. 
 

7. Any other items of business that the Chairman of the Committee decides are 

urgent   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/


Page 4 

 

 

Reports for noting: 

 

In accordance with the Council decision (Minute No. 542 refers), the following report is for 

noting and a copy has been placed in the Members’ Room and on the I drive for Members’ 

information. 

 

 Other Area Planning and Related Matters – Appeals Lodged and Appeal Decisions 

 

 

 
 

NOTICES 

 

Sound Recording of Meeting 

Please note that the Council will be recording any part of this meeting held in open session 

for subsequent publication on the Council’s website.  Members of the public attending the 

meeting with a view to speaking are deemed to be giving permission to be included in the 

recording.   

 

Fire 

In event of a fire, Officers will notify those present.  Please use the fire exits marked with the 

green running man.  The fire assembly point is Barclays Bank car park.  Please gather there 

and await further instruction. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: 

1. The Council operates a facility for public speaking.  This will operate only in relation 

to the consideration and determination of planning applications under Agenda Items 

No. 5 – 6. 

2. The Committee may hear from one objector, one supporter, a Parish / Town Council 

representative, and the applicant / agent.  Please note that the opportunity to speak is 

afforded only to those having previous made previous written representation. 

3. Anyone wishing to speak must notify the Committee Clerk or a Planning Officer 

between 7pm and 7.20pm prior to the start of the meeting. 

4. For further information please ring 01621 875791 or 876232 or see the Council’s 

website – www.maldon.gov.uk/committees  

 

* Please note the list of related Background Papers attached to this agenda. 

http://www.maldon.gov.uk/committees


Page 5 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

The Background Papers listed below have been relied upon in the preparation of this report: 

1. The current planning applications under consideration and related correspondence. 

2. All third party representations and consultation replies received. 

3. The following Statutory Plans and Supplementary Planning Guidance, together with 

relevant Government legislation, Circulars, Advice, Orders, Directions and Guidance: 

 

Development Plans 

 Maldon District Local Development Plan approved by the Secretary of State 21 July 

2017 

 Burnham-On-Crouch Neighbourhood Development Plan (2017) 

 

Legislation 

 The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 

 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

 Planning (Hazardous Substances) Act 1990 

 The Planning and Compensation Act 1991  

 The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) 

 The Planning Act 2008 

 The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as 

amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 

Order 2010 

 The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regs 2007 

 The Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) Regs 2011 

 Localism Act 2011 

 The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended) 

 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as 

amended) 

 Growth and Infrastructure Act 2013 

 Housing and Planning Act 2016 

 Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017 

 The Town and Country Planning (Brownfield Land Register) Regulations 2017 



Page 6 

Supplementary Planning Guidance and Other Advice 

i) Government policy and guidance  

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) - 2018 

 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)  

 Planning policy for Traveller sites - 2015 

 Relevant government circulars 

 Relevant Ministerial Statements (as referred to in the report) 

 Essex and South Suffolk Shoreline Management Plan – October 2010 

ii) Essex County Council 

 Essex Design Guide 1997 (Note: superseded by Maldon District Design Guide 2018) 

 Essex and Southend on Sea Waste Local Plan 2017 

 Essex Minerals Local Plan 2014 

iii) Maldon District Council 

 Five Year Housing Land Supply Statement 2017 / 18 

 Maldon District Design Guide – 2017 

 Maldon and Heybridge Central Area Masterplan - 2017 

 Infrastructure Delivery Plan (All versions, including update in Council’s 

Hearing Statement) 

 Infrastructure Phasing Plan (January 2015 and January 2017 update for 

Examination) 

 North Heybridge Garden Suburb Strategic Masterplan Framework - 2014 

 South Maldon Garden Suburb Strategic Masterplan Framework – 2014 

(adapted as Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2018) 

 Vehicle Parking Standards SPD - 2018 

 Renewable and Low Carbon Technologies SPD – 2018 

 Maldon District Specialist Housing SPD – 2018 

 Affordable Housing and Viability SPD – 2018 

 Accessibility to Buildings SPD – December 2006 

 Children’s Play Spaces SPD – March 2006 

 Sadd’s Wharf SPD – September 2007 

 Heybridge Basin Timber Yard SPD – February 2007 

 Developer Contributions Guide SPD - 2010 

 Heybridge Basin Village Design Statement – 2007 

 Wickham Bishops Village Design Statement – 2011 

 Woodham Walter Village Design Statement – 2011 

 Althorne Village Design Statement 

 Woodham Walter Village Design Statement 

 Various Conservation Area Appraisals 

 

All Background Papers are available for inspection at the Maldon District Council Offices, 

Princes Road, Maldon, Essex CM9 5DL during normal office hours. 



 

361 

MINUTES of 

SOUTH EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

12 AUGUST 2019 

 

PRESENT 

 

Chairman Councillor R P F Dewick 

Vice-Chairman Councillor M W Helm 

Councillors M G Bassenger, B S Beale MBE, V J Bell, R G Boyce MBE, 

A S Fluker, N J Skeens and W Stamp 

322. CHAIRMAN'S NOTICES  

 

The Chairman drew attention to the list of notices published on the back of the agenda. 

 

323. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mrs P A Channer, CC. 

 

324. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  

 

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 15 July 2019 be 

approved and confirmed. 

 

325. DISCLOSURE OF INTEREST  

 

Councillor R P F Dewick referring to Agenda Item 6 - TPO 3/19, Land to the north and 

east of The Boathouse, Bridgemarsh Lane, Althorne, said that he knew some of the 

owners but that it did not constitute an interest. 

 

Councillor N Skeens declared a non-pecuniary interest in Agenda Item 5 - 

FUL/MAL/19/00397, The Gatehouse, Sea End Caravan Park, Belvedere Road, 

Burnham-On-Crouch, Essex, CM0 8AB, as he knew a number of people who had 

caravans there, including a relative. He advised the Committee that he would partake in 

the discussion but abstain from voting. 

 

Councillor M Bassenger declared in the interest of openness and transparency on 

Agenda Item 6 - TPO 3/19, Land to the north and east of The Boathouse, Bridgemarsh 

Lane, Althorne, as he knew all involved in the application and lived in Bridgemarsh 

Lane. 

. 

 

Unrestricted Document Pack

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



362 

326. FUL/MAL/19/00397 - THE GATEHOUSE, SEA END CARAVAN PARK, 

BELVEDERE ROAD, BURNHAM-ON-CROUCH, ESSEX CM0 8AB  

 

Application Number FUL/MAL/19/00397 

Location 
The Gatehouse, Sea End Caravan Park, Belvedere Road, 

Burnham-On-Crouch, Essex, CM0 8AB 

Proposal 

Variation of condition 2 on approved planning 

permission FUL/MAL/95/00407 (Retention of consent 

refs. BUR/23/51 without compliance with condition 3 

BUR/21/59 condition 1 and MAL/909/77 condition 3 to 

allow occupancy of caravans from 1 March to 30 

November annually.) 

Applicant Mr M Annis - Rice & Cole Ltd. 

Agent Mr Mark Southerton 

Target Decision Date 02.07.2019 (EoT agreed: 16.08.2019) 

Case Officer Anna Tastsoglou 

Parish BURNHAM SOUTH 

Reason for Referral to the 

Committee / Council 
Major application 

 

Following the Officer’s presentation, a long debate ensued. 

 

Members expressed concerns regarding the potential for all year round use of the 

caravans; the additional strain on local services like doctors and schools, despite the 

accommodation not being the primary residence and above all the risk of flooding 

during the winter months. It was noted that monitoring the conditions and the register 

was the responsibility of the Council. 

 

The Lead Specialist Place advised that since there were no material planning objections 

the development was acceptable. Furthermore, since these were not primary residences 

but holiday lettings, occupants should not impact on key services like schools or doctor 

surgeries. 

 

Councillor Fluker, noting that there were no planning reasons to refuse, proposed, albeit 

reluctantly, that the application be approved in accordance with the Officer’s 

recommendation. This was seconded by Councillor Boyce on the proviso that Condition 

3. The owners/operators shall maintain an up to date register of the names of all 

owners/occupiers of individual caravans on the site, and of their main home addresses, 

and shall make this information available at all reasonable times to the Local Planning 

Authority.  

REASON In order to ensure that the approved use is carried out in accordance with the 

submitted details, that the use of the site is for holiday purposes only, that there is no 

adverse effect to the adjoining designated nature conservation site and to ensure that 

the impact from any flood events is limited in line with policies S1, S8, E5, D1, D2, D5 

and N2 of the approved Local Development Plan, policies EC.6, EN.1 and EN.3 of the 

Burnham-on-Crouch Neighbourhood Plan and the guidance contained within the 

National Planning Policy Framework was strictly enforced. 

 

The Chairman put the proposal to approve the application in accordance with the 

Officer’s recommendation to the Committee and upon a vote being taken it was refused. 

 

Page 8



363 

The discussion then reverted to the concern over flooding, particularly during the winter 

months. Whilst it was acknowledged that the Environment Agency had made no 

objection it was also noted that the location was below sea level and in the event of 

flooding the occupants did not have the facility to decant to an upper floor.  

 

The consensus was that the application be refused as the potential for flooding and 

damage to the seawall defences during the winter months, putting occupants at risk, was 

too serious to overlook and contrary to policy in the Local Development Plan.  

 

The Chairman put the recommendation to refuse the application for the aforementioned 

reason to the Committee and the application was refused, contrary to the Officer’s 

recommendation.    

 

Councillors R G Boyce, MBE and A S Fluker asked that their original vote to support 

the application be recorded. 

 

RESOLVED that the application be REFUSED for the following reason:  

 

1. It is considered that there is an increased risk of flooding and the sea wall 

collapsing in the winter months and therefore the proposal is considered to put the 

occupiers of the caravans at risk during winter, contrary to policy D5 of the 

Maldon District Local Development Plan and guidance contained within the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

327. TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (TPO) 3/19 - LAND TO THE NORTH AND 

EAST OF THE BOATHOUSE, BRIDGEMARSH LANE, ALTHORNE  

 

Application Number TPO 3/19 

Location 
Land to the north and east of The Boathouse, 

Bridgemarsh Lane, Althorne 

Proposal Confirmation of TPO 3/19 

Owner 
Samantha Lonergan, Georgina McHugh (H Bass and 

Sons), Mr Lee Batt, Mrs Batt, Mr Michael Bass.  

Confirmation by  01.10.2019 

Case Officer Hayleigh Parker-Haines 

Parish ALTHORNE PARISH COUNCIL  

Reason for Referral to the 

Committee / Council 

Decision on confirmation of a Tree Preservation Order as 

per the Council’s scheme of delegation 

 

Following the Officer’s presentation, the Committee debated the proposal. 

 

Councillor Boyce, MBE, said he did not agree with the Officer’s recommendation and 

that the owners had gone to some expense looking after the woodland under the scheme 

currently in operation on the site.  In addition, he felt that the conditions applied would 

restrict the proper management of the woodland, requiring planning permission for 

future maintenance. He proposed that the Tree Preservation Order (TPO) not be 

confirmed, contrary to the Officer’s recommendation and this was seconded by 

Councillor Fluker. 

 

Further concern was expressed that the proposed procedures would discourage the 

planting of  woodland and questions were raised regarding the role of the Forestry 

Page 9



364 

Commission (FC) in this instance. The Lead Specialist Place advised that the Forestry 

Commission worked side by side with the Council on these matters. It was noted that 

given the existing scheme with the Forestry Commission was valid to 2032, the issue of 

a TPO should be considered then, not at this stage in the scheme. 

 

The Chairman put the proposal to not confirm the Tree Preservation Order to the 

Committee and upon a vote being taken this was agreed.   

 

RESOLVED that the Tree Preservation Order not be CONFIRMED. 

 

328. TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (TPO) 6/19 - 29 CHAPEL ROAD, BURNHAM-

ON-CROUCH, ESSEX  

 

Tree Preservation Order TPO 6/19 

Location 29 Chapel Road, Burnham-on-Crouch, Essex   

Proposal Confirmation of TPO 6/19 

Owner Mr Dean Lawrence 

Confirmation by 24.12.2019 

Case Officer Annie Keen 

Parish BURNHAM SOUTH 

Reason for Referral to the 

Committee / Council 

Decision on confirmation of a Tree Preservation Order 

as per the Council’s scheme of delegation 

 

Following the Officer’s presentation, the Committee debated the proposal. 

 

Members reported that the tree was nearing the end of its natural life and that it should 

be taken down. The issue of coppicing the tree was raised but the concerns that the tree 

had out grown its location and, should it come down, the potential to cause damage to 

neighbouring properties outweighed that suggestion.  

 

The Chairman put the Officer’s recommendation to confirm the Tree Preservation Order 

to the Committee and upon a vote being taken it was refused. 

 

RESOLVED that the Tree Preservation Order not be CONFIRMED. 

 

There being no further items of business the Chairman closed the meeting at 8.27 pm. 

 

 

 

R P F DEWICK 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 10



 

Agenda Item no. 5 
 

Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 
 

REPORT of 

DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE 

to 

SOUTH EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

9 SEPTEMBER 2019 

 

Application Number FUL/MAL/18/00381 

Location Millfields Caravan Park, Millfields, Burnham-On-Crouch, Essex 

Proposal 

Erection of building to be used as offices, shop, shower/toilet 

facilities, spa, pool facilities and gym, formation of hardstanding 

to be used as road and parking and enhanced landscaping, in 

association with an existing caravan site 

Applicant Birch's Leisure Parks Limited 

Agent Mr Philip Kratz 

Target Decision Date 13.03.2019 (Extension of time agreed: 13.09.2019) 

Case Officer Anna Tastsoglou  

Parish BURNHAM SOUTH 

Reason for Referral to the 

Committee / Council 
Council Owned Land 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

 

APPROVE subject to the conditions (as detailed in Section 8 of this report). 

2. SITE MAP 

 

Please see overleaf. 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

 
  

Page 12



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

3. SUMMARY 

 

3.1 Proposal / brief overview, including any relevant background information 

 

Site description 

 

3.1.1 The application site, according to the Local Development Plan (LDP), forms part of 

the Riverside Park, which is approximately 23.15 hectares in size, to the southeast of 

Burnham-on-Crouch.  The site is located east of Station Road and the Dengie 

Hundred Sports Centre, north of the river Crouch marshes, outside the settlement 

boundary of Burnham-on-Crouch. 

 

3.1.2 The site is accessed via a west turning head onto Station Road.  It is approximately 2 

hectares is size and it is mainly grassed over with sporadic trees and hedges along the 

boundaries.  A ditch traverses the site.  The site has a lawful use as a caravan park and 

although at present there appears to be only a small utilities’ structure on site, the site 

was occupied by caravans since 2006. 

 

3.1.3 The Burnham-on-Crouch Rugby Union Football Club and the Dengie Hundred Sports 

Centre lie to the east of the site, a car park is located to the south of the site, 

residential properties are sited to the north, while to the west is public open space and 

the Burnham-on-Crouch marine. 

 

3.1.4 Whilst the application site is flat, topographically the land rises steeply to the south 

and west of the site.  The site is located within flood zone 3.  

 

Description of proposal   

 

3.1.5 Planning permission is sought for the erection of a single storey building to be used as 

offices, shop, shower/toilet facilities, spa, pool facilities and gym, the formation of 

hardstanding to be used as access road and provide off-street parking and enhanced 

landscaping, in association with an existing caravan park.  A total of 52 caravans 

would be stationed on site, which was confirmed that would comply with the 

requirements of The Caravan Act.  Although the existing access to the site would be 

retained, the caravan park road would be amended to follow the boundary lines of the 

application site.  

 

3.1.6 The proposed building would be a simple timber framed structure, measuring 21.6m 

wide, 9.9m deep, 3.3m high to the eaves, with a maximum height of 6.4m. materials 

to be used to the external elevations would include metal seam roof (colour grey), the 

external walls would be cladded (colour ‘cliffside’) with brickwork to the slab level 

and the windows would be metal framed (colour dark grey). 

 

3.1.7 Each caravan would be served by one off-street parking space and an additional eight 

parking spaces would be provided at the entrance of the site. 

 

3.1.8 In terms of landscaping, it is noted that the majority of the existing trees and hedges 

will be retained and reinforced with new trees, hedges and shrubs. 

 

3.1.9 The information submitted with the application advise that the caravan park would 

operate as holiday caravan park for 10 months of each calendar year, between 11
th

 

Page 13



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

March and 10
th

 January, with the exception of the staff accommodation.  It is noted 

though that the proposed development does not involve the use of the site as a holiday 

caravan park, given that this is the lawful use of the site and thus, the opening time 

period cannot be restricted.  

 

3.1.10 It should be noted that following extensive correspondence with the applicant’s agent, 

the originally proposed manager accommodation has been omitted from the proposed 

development to overcome the holding objection of the Environment Agency.  

 

3.2 Conclusion 

 

3.2.1 The principle of provision of facilities and services ancillary to an existing tourist use 

is considered acceptable and in accordance with policies S8 and E5 of the approved 

Local Development Plan.  The impact of the development on the character of the area 

and the amenities of the neighbouring occupiers has been assessed and found to be 

acceptable.  The development would not result in unacceptable impact on the highway 

safety or the free flow of traffic and it would provide sufficient off-street parking to 

meet the needs of the proposed development.  Following omission of the originally 

proposed managers’ accommodation on site, which is located in an area of high risk 

of flooding, the originally raised concerns regarding the flood risk have been 

removed. Additional information has also been provided in relation to surface water 

drainage to the satisfaction of the Lead Local Flood Authority.  The development, 

subject to appropriate mitigation, would not adversely impact upon the nature 

conservation sites or the protected species.  For those reasons the development is 

considered acceptable and in accordance with the aims of the Development Plan 

Policies. 

4. MAIN RELEVANT POLICIES 

 

Members’ attention is drawn to the list of background papers attached to the agenda. 

 

4.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2019 including paragraphs: 

 7  Sustainable development 

 8  Three objectives of sustainable development 

 10-12  Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

 38  Decision-making  

 47-50  Determining applications 

 83-84   Supporting a prosperous rural economy 

 102-111 Promoting sustainable transport 

 124-132 Achieving well-designed places 

 148-169 Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal  

change 

 170-183 Conserving and enhancing the natural environment 

 

4.2 Maldon District Local Development Plan 2014 – 2029 approved by the Secretary 

of State: 

 S1 Sustainable Development 

 S7 Prosperous Rural Communities 

Page 14



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

 S8 Settlement Boundaries and the Countryside  

 D1 Design Quality and Built Environment 

 D2 Climate Change and Environmental Impact of New Development 

 D5 Flood Risk and Coastal Change 

 E5  Tourism 

 N1 Green Infrastructure Network 

 N2 Natural Environment and Biodiversity. 

 T1 Sustainable Transport 

 T2 Accessibility 

 

4.3 Burnham-on-Crouch Neighbourhood Development Plan (7 September 2017): 

 Policy EC.6 Tourism 

 Policy EN.1 Flood Prevention 

 Policy EN.3 Enhancement of the Natural Environment 

 Policy RI.2 Design Sensitivity of Riverside Developments 

 

4.4 Relevant Planning Guidance / Documents: 

 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

 National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 

 Maldon District Design Guide SPD 

 Essex Design Guide 

 Maldon District Vehicle Parking Standards SPD 

5. MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

 

5.1 Principle of Development 

 

5.1.1 The Maldon District Local Development Plan (MDLDP) has been produced in light 

of the original NPPF’s emphasis on sustainable development and policy S1 promotes 

the principles of sustainable development encompassing the three objectives 

identified in the NPPF.  These three objectives of sustainable development are also 

reiterated in the revised NPPF (paragraph 8). 

 

5.1.2 Policy S1 of the Local Development Plan states that “When considering development 

proposals the Council will take a positive approach that reflects the presumption in 

favour of sustainable development contained in the NPPF and will apply, inter alia, 

the following key principles in policy and decision making: 

1) Ensure a healthy and competitive local economy by providing sufficient space, 

flexibility and training opportunities for both existing and potential businesses in line 

with the needs and aspirations of the District; 

4) Support growth within the environmental limits of the District; 

5) Emphasise the importance of high-quality design in all developments; 

6) Create sustainable communities by retaining and delivering local services and 

facilities; 

8) Ensure new development is either located away from high flood risk areas 

(Environment Agency defined Flood Zones 2 and 3) or is safe and flood resilient when 

Page 15



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

it is not possible to avoid such areas;12) Maintain the rural character of the District 

without compromising the identity of its individual settlements; 

9) Conserve and enhance the natural environment, by providing protection and 

increasing local biodiversity and geodiversity, and effective management of the 

District’s green infrastructure network; 

13) Minimise the need to travel and where travel is necessary, prioritise sustainable 

modes of transport and improve access for all in the community”.  

 

5.1.3 The site is outside the settlement boundary and is in the countryside for purposes of 

application of planning policy. As such the proposal is in conflict with the 

abovementioned approved policies. 

 

5.1.4 The requirement to focus strategic growth to the District’s main settlements is 

highlighted in policies S1, S2 and S8 of the approved MDLDP.  This is to ensure that 

the countryside will be protected for its landscape, natural resources and ecological 

value as well as its intrinsic character and beauty.  It is clearly stated that outside of 

the defined settlement boundaries, Garden Suburbs and Strategic Allocations, 

planning permission for development will only be granted where the intrinsic 

character and beauty of the countryside is not adversely impacted upon and when it is 

for a purpose that falls within a defined list of acceptable development. 

 

5.1.5 The proposed development would be located outside the defined settlement 

boundaries of Burnham-on-Crouch; however, it is proposed in support of an existing 

lawful tourism use; a caravan park.  Policy S8 advises that “Outside of the defined 

settlement boundaries, the Garden Suburbs and the Strategic Allocations, planning 

permission for development will only be granted where the intrinsic character and 

beauty of the countryside is not adversely impacted upon and provided it is (inter 

alia) for f) Rural diversification, recreation and tourism (including equestrian and 

related activities) proposals (in accordance with Policies E4 and E5)”. 

 

5.1.6 Policy E5 states that “The Council will support developments which contribute 

positively to the growth of local tourism in a sustainable manner and realise 

opportunities that arise from the District’s landscape, heritage and built 

environment”.  

 

5.1.7 The proposed development would provide facilities ancillary to and to support the 

existing tourist use of the site.  Therefore, in light of the above, subject to the 

protection of the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, which is further 

assessed below, the development would be acceptable in principle.  

 

5.1.8 The site, according to LDP, forms part of the designated Riverside Park, which is part 

of the Council’s Green infrastructure.  Policy N1 states that there will be a 

presumption against any development which may lead to the loss of existing green 

infrastructure. The preamble of the policy advises that green infrastructure would 

include “open spaces, natural assets and facilities including woodlands, nature 

reserves, country parks, village greens, parks, gardens, cemeteries, churchyards, 

allotments, sports pitches and other recreational facilities which are designed, 

developed and managed to meet the needs of local communities”. On that basis, 

considering that the development would be ancillary to a recreational facility, it would 

not result in loss of the green infrastructure.  In any event, it is noted that the site has a 

Page 16



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

lawful use a caravan park and the development would only provide facilities ancillary 

to the existing lawful use of the site.  

 

5.1.9 It is noted that given the existing lawful use of the site, as a caravan park, no 

permission is required for the siting of the caravans, as long as they comply with the 

dimensions stated in The Caravan Act. 

 

5.1.10 In light of the above, it is considered that subject to the protection of the intrinsic 

character and beauty of the countryside, the development would be acceptable in 

principle and in accordance with the policies of the LDP. 

 

5.2 Design and Impact on the Character of the Area 

 

5.2.1 The planning system promotes high quality development through good inclusive 

design and layout, and the creation of safe, sustainable, liveable and mixed 

communities.  Good design should be indivisible from good planning.  Recognised 

principles of good design seek to create a high-quality built environment for all types 

of development. 

 

5.2.2 It should be noted that good design is fundamental to high quality new development 

and its importance is reflected in the NPPF.  The NPPF states that: 

“The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the 

planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of 

sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps 

make development acceptable to communities”.  

 

“Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the 

opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the 

way it functions, taking into account any local design standards or style guides in 

plans or supplementary planning documents”. 

 

5.2.3 The basis of policy D1 of the approved LDP seeks to ensure that all development will 

respect and enhance the character and local context and make a positive contribution 

in terms of: 

a) Architectural style, use of materials, detailed design features and construction 

methods. Innovative design and construction solutions will be considered 

where appropriate; 

b) Height, size, scale, form, massing and proportion;  

c) Landscape setting, townscape setting and skylines;  

d) Layout, orientation, and density;  

e) Historic environment particularly in relation to designated and non-designated 

heritage assets;  

f) Natural environment particularly in relation to designated and non-designated 

sites of biodiversity / geodiversity value; and 

g) Energy and resource efficiency.  

 

5.2.4 Similar support for high quality design and the appropriate layout, scale and detailing 

of development is found within the MDDG (2017). 

 

Page 17



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

5.2.5 The application site lies outside the defined settlement boundaries.  According to 

policies S1 and S8 of the LDP, the countryside will be protected for its landscape, 

natural resources and ecological value as well as its intrinsic character and beauty.  

The policies stipulate that outside of the defined settlement boundaries, the Garden 

Suburbs and the Strategic Allocations, planning permission for development will only 

be granted where the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside is not adversely 

impacted upon and provided the development is for proposals that are in compliance 

with policies within the LDP, neighbourhood plans and other local planning guidance. 

 

5.2.6 The proposed development is for the erection of a building to provide facilities 

ancillary to the caravan park and also new hard standing to be used as parking and 

caravan park road.  No permission is required for the siting of the caravans, as long as 

they comply with the dimensions stated in The Caravan Act. 

 

5.2.7 The proposed building would be of single storey height and a comparably small scale 

when considered within the area that the application site covers.  The building would 

be of a rectangular shape, featuring a gable roof and of simple external appearance 

and design.  The development would be visible from public vantage points, but it 

would be set well back from the highway, almost central to the application site, 

minimising the visual impact and dominance of the structure, when viewed from the 

public highway. 

 

5.2.8 In design terms, large amount of glazing is proposed to be incorporated to the east and 

west elevations, making the development appear more lightweight. Sufficient 

fenestration is also proposed to the north and south elevations, providing articulation 

to the long elevations.  In terms of external finishing materials, it is considered that 

the proposed metal seam roof, metal framed windows and doors and clad exterior 

would be appropriate and materially harmful to the appearance and the character of 

the site itself or the wider area. 

 

5.2.9 No objection is raised in relation to the amount and appearance of the proposed 

hardstanding, given that a large amount of landscaping would be maintained and in 

areas enhanced with further planting.  The majority of the existing hedgerows (on the 

northern, western and southern boundaries) will be retained and the majority of the 

trees within the site would also be retained, limiting removals mainly to scrubby 

vegetation and conifers.  Additional trees are proposed on the eastern boundary.  Tree, 

shrub and hedgerow planting, as well as a mix of native and ornamental planting, 

would be introduced to enhance the site’s landscape.  On the basis of that, no 

objection is raised to the proposed hard surfaced areas, which would be 

proportionately limited.  The details of the hard and soft landscaping have been 

provided on submitted illustrative plans and there will be conditions, in order to 

ensure that the development makes sufficient provision of soft landscaping and is 

implemented as approved. 

 

5.2.10 The application is accompanied by a Landscape Visual Impact Assessment, which 

states that the proposed development would not result in loss of value of the landscape 

of the Fambridge Drained Estuarine Marsh as there would be no loss of important 

landscape features, elements and characteristics and minimal influence over the 

surrounding landscape and the River Crouch corridor.  It is also stated that there 

would be very limited visibility of the proposed development from the publicly 

Page 18



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

accessible locations within the country park and recreational landscape on the fringes 

of Burnham-on-Crouch and around Brampton. 

 

5.2.11 In light of the above, it is considered that the impact of the development on the 

character of the area and the landscape would be limited and not detrimental to justify 

refusal of the application. 

 

5.3 Impact on Residential Amenity 

 

5.3.1 The basis of policies D1 and H4 of the approved LDP seek to ensure that 

development will protect the amenity of its surrounding areas taking into account 

privacy, overlooking, outlook, noise, smell, light, visual impact, pollution, daylight 

and sunlight.  This is supported by section C07 of the MDDG (2017).  

 

5.3.2 In terms of the use of the site, it is noted that the nature of the proposal would not alter 

the existing lawful use of the site as a caravan park.  Whilst it is accepted that the site 

is currently and has been in recent years vacant, it is noted that its lawful use as a 

caravan site has not ceased and thus, it could be re-used as a caravan site at any time, 

without the need of planning permission.  

 

5.3.3 The current proposal is for the erection of a building providing ancillary uses to the 

caravan site and hardstanding. 

 

5.3.4 The application site has one adjacent neighbouring property ‘Tideway Lodge’ located 

to the north of the site. 

 

5.3.5 The position of the proposed building and its relationship with the properties in the 

surrounding area, is such that it is considered impossible to result in unacceptable 

impacts in terms of loss of light, domination or unacceptable levels of noise and 

disturbance, due to the separation distance maintained (around 185m away from the 

nearest residential property). 

 

5.3.6 The proposed hardstanding, would have no impact on the residential amenity of the 

nearby occupiers. 

 

5.4 Access, Parking and Highway Safety 

 

5.4.1 Policy T2 aims to create and maintain an accessible environment, requiring 

development proposals, inter alia, to provide sufficient parking facilities having 

regard to the Council’s adopted parking standards.  Similarly, policy D1 of the 

approved LDP seeks to include safe and secure vehicle and cycle parking having 

regard to the Council’s adopted parking standards and maximise connectivity within 

the development and to the surrounding areas including the provision of high quality 

and safe pedestrian, cycle and, where appropriate, horse riding routes.  

 

Parking  

 

5.4.2 The Council’s adopted Vehicle Parking Standards SPD contain the parking standards 

which are expressed as minimum standards.  This takes into account Government 

guidance which recognises that car usage will not be reduced by arbitrarily restricting 

off street parking spaces.  Therefore, whilst the Council maintains an emphasis of 

Page 19



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

promoting sustainable modes of transport and widening the choice, it is recognised 

that the Maldon District is predominantly rural in nature and there is a higher than 

average car ownership.  Therefore, the minimum parking standards seek to reduce the 

negative impact unplanned on-street parking can have on the townscape and safety 

and take into account the availability of public transport and residents’ reliance on the 

car for accessing, employment, everyday services and leisure.  The key objectives of 

the standards is to help create functional developments, whilst maximising 

opportunities for use of sustainable modes of transport.  This will enable people to 

sustainably and easily carry out their daily travel requirements without an 

unacceptable detrimental impact on the local road network, or the visual appearance 

of the development, from excessive and inconsiderate on street parking. 

 

5.4.3 The application site has a lawful use as a caravan park and the off-street parking 

requirements for the use in accordance with the Vehicle Parking Standards SPD are 1 

space per pitch, 1 space per residential staff and 1 space for two other staff. 

 

5.4.4 The submitted plans show that one parking space would be provided per pitch and an 

additional eight off-street parking spaces at the entrance of the site in association with 

the proposed welcome and amenity building.  The proposed building would provide 

ancillary leisure uses (such as gym and spa), as well as the reception and offices.  

 

5.4.5 The application is supported by a Transport Assessment, which states that two of the 

caravans would be provided to accommodate resident staff and there is potential of 

employing an additional 5 non-resident staff.  However, as noted in the ‘proposal’ 

section, the originally proposed managers’ accommodation has been omitted from the 

proposed development.  This information was received after the submission of the 

Transport Assessment and therefore, it supersedes it in that respect.  With regard to 

non-resident staff, one parking space per non-resident staff is required.  On that basis 

4 parking spaces would be required for employees, which can be provided on site, 

leaving an additional 4 parking spaces for visitors, which is considered sufficient to 

meet the off-street parking needs of the site. 

 

5.4.6 Even when considered separately, the proposed welcome and amenity building would 

be used mainly to provide leisure facilities and as reception to the caravan park.  The 

building would cover an area of approximately 180sqm and the parking requirement 

for the D2 use is a maximum of 1 space per 22sqm.  On that basis, the proposed eight 

off-street parking spaces in association with the proposed new building would be 

sufficient to meet the parking requirements as set out in the Vehicle Parking 

Standards SPD. 

 

5.4.7 In terms of cycle parking, one cycle parking space per 4 members of staff and one per 

10 pitches would be required to be provided.  Thus, a total of 9 cycle parking spaces 

should be provided.  The submission of details of safe and secure cycle parking would 

be secured by condition. 

 

Trip generation  

 

5.4.8 A TRICS assessment has been carried out to assess the vehicle trip generation. 

Although the Transport Assessment advised that the current trip generation is 0, given 

that the site is currently vacant, it is noted that the site has a lawful use as a caravan 

Page 20



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

park and it could be used as such at any time, without the need of planning 

permission.  

 

5.4.9 It is forecasted that the site would generate 82 trips on weekdays (in a 12-hour period) 

and 80 trips on weekends (in a 12-hour period).  Although it is accepted that the 

development would result in an increase in the vehicle movement, considering that 

the site is currently vacant, it is noted that the site has a lawful use as a caravan park 

and it was previously used as caravan site, providing accommodation to 70 caravans.  

On that basis, it is considered that the vehicle movement would not be materially 

different from that which could have been generated by using the site in accordance 

with its lawful use.  No objection is therefore raised in relation to trip generation and 

impact of the development on the highway network. 

 

Access 

 

5.4.10 The site would utilise an existing vehicular access onto Millfields, which at the first 

30 metres adjacent to highway would be wide enough to allow a two-way traffic.  The 

Highway Authority has been consulted and raised no objection to the proposed 

development.  Therefore, no objection is raised in relation to the proposed access to 

the  

site.   

 

5.5 Flood Risk 

 

5.5.1 The application site is located within Flood Zone 3a, defined by PPG as having a high 

probability of flooding. Policy D5 of the LDP, in line with national policy, provides 

local flood risk considerations and seeks to direct development to the lower risk flood 

zones. 

 

5.5.2 Policy D5 of the LDP states that the Council’s approach is to direct strategic growth 

towards lower flood risk areas, such as Flood Zone 1 as identified by the Environment 

Agency.  Where development is not located in Flood Zone 1 and in order to minimise 

the risk of flooding, it should be demonstrated that the Sequential and Exception 

Tests, where necessary, have been satisfactorily undertaken in accordance with 

national planning policy. 

 

5.5.3 Although the application site is located within flood zone 3, it has a lawful use as a 

caravan park and therefore, the development proposed under the current application is 

that relating to the erection of a building to provide ancillary uses to the caravan park, 

as well as associated hard standing and thus, the it would fall within the “less 

vulnerable” category.  

 

5.5.4 According to the NPPF “The aim of the Sequential Test is to steer new development 

to areas with the lowest probability of flooding. Development should not be allocated 

or permitted if there are reasonably available sites appropriate for the proposed 

development in areas with a lower probability of flooding. The Strategic Flood Risk 

Assessment will provide the basis for applying this test. A sequential approach should 

be used in areas known to be at risk from any form of flooding.” (Paragraph 158 of 

the NPPF). 

 

Page 21



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

5.5.5 As noted above, the site has a lawful use as a caravan park and any services and 

facilities associated with the holiday caravan use of the site would be reasonably 

necessary to be provided on site.  The proposed building would be used as offices, a 

shop, shower/toilet facilities, spa, pool facilities and a gym.  The previously proposed 

managers’ dwelling does no longer form part of the proposal and therefore, the 

proposed building will be erected to provide ancillary facilities to the caravan park.  

The hardstanding would be laid to provide an access road and parking.   It is therefore 

considered that there is no sequentially preferable site in an area at lower risk of 

flooding, considering that the services and facilities to be provided are directly related 

to the holiday caravan use of the site. On that basis, it is considered that the 

development passes the sequential test. 

 

5.5.6 Following the sequential test, the exception test should be applied.  The latter is 

applied only when the sequential test has been passed and requires: 

 

a) the development would provide wider sustainability benefits to the community that 

outweigh the flood risk; and  

b) the development will be safe for its lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its 

users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible, will reduce flood 

risk overall. 

 

5.5.7 As discussed in the ‘Principle’ section of the report, the development would provide 

ancillary and improved facilities to an existing caravan park, which will encourage the 

growth of tourism in the local area, in accordance with policy D5 of the LDP.  The 

proposed development is supported by a Flood Risk Assessment, a flood evacuation 

plan and further details in relation to sufficient drainage strategy (further assessed 

below) that can provide adequate mitigation to make the development being safe for 

its lifetime and not increase flood risk elsewhere. 

 

5.5.8 As part of the application, the Lead Local Flood Authority was consulted and initially 

raised concerns in relation to the proposed run off rates, the half drain time of the 

storage tanks, the water quality treatment, and the way that the surface water would be 

routed through the site in the event of a blockage of the pump or in an event greater 

that the 1 in 100 plus 40%.  Concerns have also been raised by Environment Agency 

in relation to higher refuse availably within the welcome and amenity building to 

ensure the health and safety of users and the manager’s accommodation. 

 

5.5.9 Additional information has been submitted to address the abovementioned matters.  

The surface water generated by the proposed development has been restricted to 1 in 

10-year run-off rate, given that additional storage for the 1 in 10-year event over that 

previously provided and downstream defenders within the system have been included 

to ensure sufficient treatment.  A Flow Exceedance Plan has also been produced 

which indicates that the surface water would flow into the existing ditch within the 

site during storm which would exceed the 1 in 100 years plus 40% event.  It is also 

proposed that the car parking areas will be surfaced with permeable block paving.   

On the basis of the above additional information submitted, the LLFA, which was re-

consulted, no longer raises an objection to the proposed development. 

 

5.5.10 In response to the comments raised by the Environment Agency, a Flood Evacuation 

Plan has been submitted. It is recommended that the Welcome & Amenity Building is 

registered with the Environment Agency’s Flood Warning Service.  It is advised that 

Page 22



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

should the site need to be evacuated, the initial Flood Warning would be provided by 

the Environment Agency.  The purpose of the evacuation is to ensure the building is 

clear of occupants prior to the onset of flooding.  On the basis of the submitted Flood 

Evacuation Plan, it is considered that the development would not result in risk of life 

of the users of the welcome centre.  Furthermore, it is noted that the originally 

proposed manager’s accommodation does no longer form part of this proposal.  The 

Environment Agency was re-consulted on the basis of the revised information and has 

no removed its holding objection.  

 

5.5.11 In light of the above assessment, it is considered that the development would be 

acceptable in terms of flood risk, it would not result in an unacceptable risk of 

flooding and it would increase flood risk elsewhere. 

 

5.6 Ecology  

 

5.6.1 Paragraph 180 of the NPPF states that in order to prevent unacceptable risks from 

pollution, planning decisions should ensure that new development is appropriate for 

its location.  The effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, the 

natural environment or general amenity, and the potential sensitivity of the area or 

proposed development to adverse effects from pollution, should be taken into account.  

Paragraph 170 of the NPPF states that the planning system should contribute to and 

enhance the natural and local environment by, among others, preventing both new and 

existing development from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or 

being adversely affected by unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or 

land instability. 

 

5.6.2 Policy D2 seeks all development to minimise its impact on the environment by 

incorporating measures to minimise all forms of possible pollution including air, land, 

water, odour, noise and light. Any detrimental impacts and potential risks to the 

human and natural environment will need to be adequately addressed by appropriate 

avoidance, alleviation and mitigation measures. 

 

5.6.3 Policy N2 of the LDP states that where any potential adverse effects to the 

conservation value or biodiversity value of designated sites are identified, the 

proposal will not normally be permitted.  

 

5.6.4 The application is accompanied by an Ecological Survey Report which recognises the 

position of the site near the River Crouch; thus, near a number of nature conservation 

sites, such as Special Protection Area (SPA), a Ramsar site and a Special Site of 

Scientific Interest (SSSI).  Natural England has been consulted and advised that the 

development would not have a significant impact on statutory projected sites or 

landscapes.  

 

5.6.5 According to the submitted Ecology Report, the northern field of the site comprises 

poor semi-improved grassland, while the southern field comprises managed improved 

grassland.  A wet ditch traverses the site, which is heavily overgrown.  There are also 

two ponds adjacent to the site on Burnham Riverside Park, which have been tested for 

the habitation of Great Crested Newts.    One has found to be negative, whilst the 

second showed inhabitation; however, it is stated that at present they are not 

considered as a constrain to the development. Furthermore, following various surveys, 

a low population of reptiles was identified on site.  A Mitigation Strategy during 

Page 23



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

construction is proposed to prevent reptiles from injury or mortality. This would 

involve fencing the development site and translocating reptiles into a receptor site 

within Burnham Riverside Park.  Moreover, annual cut of the grass would not be less 

than 15 cm height and additional trees and scrubs would be planted.  Monitoring of 

reptile populations post-development is also recommended.  Regarding water voles it 

is noted that the ditch on site is not in an optimal condition to support water voles, 

however, enhancement measures are recommended.  Measures should also be 

undertaken to prevent pollution of the ditch on site during construction and 

occupation.  In relation to bats, surveys have been carried out in September 2018 and 

August 2019 and a total of four species were recorded.  For that reason, it is 

recommended that lighting measures are implemented to avoid night time lighting of 

areas that would provide flight lines and foraging habitats for bats.   Monitoring of the 

above species post-development is recommended. On the basis of the above details 

submitted and surveys carried out, it is considered that sufficient information has been 

submitted to ensure that the development would not have a significant effect on the 

existing protected species and adequate mitigation measures would be implemented to 

protect and enhance the existing habitats.  

 

5.6.6 A separate Habitat Regulation Assessment has been prepared by the Local Planning 

Authority to assess the likely significant effect of the proposed development on the 

European sites, which concludes that the development would be acceptable and will 

not have an adverse effect to the integrity of the designated sites or wildlife. 

 

5.7 Other Matters 

Contamination  

 

5.7.1 The Environment Health Team has been consulted with regard to the current 

application and advised that the site is located on former landfill.  For that reason, a 

series of conditions to protect from potential land contamination have been advised to 

by the Environment Health Team.  Subject to the imposition of the appropriate land 

contamination conditions, it is not expected that the development would result in an 

unacceptable impact on future users of the site or other receptors or in contamination 

elsewhere. 

 

5.8 Pre-Commencement Conditions 

 

5.8.1 Three pre-commencement condition is recommended and approval for the use of 

these conditions has been provided by the applicant's agent on 9
th

 August 2019. 

 

5.8.2 A consultation response from the Environmental Health Team has been submitted 

requesting the imposition of pre-commencement conditions regarding the submission 

of an investigation and risk assessment and a remediation scheme thereafter if 

contamination is found on site.  These conditions are necessary to be submitted prior 

to the commencement of the development and any ground works, given that they go 

to the heart of the permission and that their findings would affect the acceptability of 

the proposed development.  Any investigation would effectively have to be carried 

out prior to the implementation of the development.  Furthermore, a condition 

requiring the submission of details of the Construction Method Statement is 

considered necessary to be submitted prior to the commencement of the development 

and any ground works, given that vehicles would be required to be parked on site 

Page 24



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

during works below ground level.  It is also reasonable that materials would have to 

be stored on site prior to the construction of the development.  As a result, if is 

considered reasonable that the abovementioned condition is required to be addressed 

prior to the commencement of the development. 

6. ANY RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 

 

6.1 FUL/MAL/94/00782 - Increase ceiling height to pump house and erection of pitched 

roof over slop sink. Planning permission granted. 

 

7. CONSULTATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED 

 

7.1 Representations received from Parish / Town Councils 

 

Name of Parish / Town 

Council 
Comment Officer Response 

Burnham-on-Crouch 

Caravan Park 

Concerns have been raised 

as follows: 

 

There has not been an 

existing caravan park on 

the site for about 10 years. 

No licence has been 

applied for. Facilities 

provide direct competition 

to those already offered by 

MDC and two private 

companies. Lodges not 

caravans proposed.  

Currently the site is used 

as a public open space and 

would be contrary to the 

LDP policy N3. The 

proposed development 

would result in the loss of 

a public footpath contrary 

to Section 31 of the 

Highways Act 1980. Gated 

/ segregated development 

unacceptable. The 

development would be 

contrary to policy D1. 

It is noted that the site has 

a lawful use as caravan 

park. 

 

It is also noted that the 

licence of the site is a 

matter assessed from 

Environmental Health 

Department of the Council 

and it is not under the 

Local Planning Authorities 

remit.  

 

The fact that there are 

other existing similar 

facilities in the area does 

not make the development 

unacceptable in planning 

terms.  

 

The proposed lodges 

would have to accord with 

the criteria set out in the 

Caravan Act. 

 

The development would 

not result in loss of a 

designated footpath.  

 

Further assessment of the 

development against the 

LDP policies is made 

within the officer’s report. 

 

Page 25



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

7.2 Statutory Consultees and Other Organisations  

 

Name of Statutory 

Consultee / Other 

Organisation 

Comment Officer Response 

ECC Highway Authority 

No objection, subject to a 

condition requesting the 

submission of a 

construction method 

statement. 

 

Comment noted and 

condition is imposed. 

Lead Local Flood 

Authority  

Following the submission 

of additional information 

as they are discussed in 

section 5.5 of the report 

and subject to appropriate 

conditions, the holding 

objection has been 

removed. 

Noted and discussed in 

section 5.5. 

Natural England 

No objection -  

Based on the plans 

submitted, Natural 

England considers that the 

proposed development 

will not have likely 

significant effects on the 

above site(s) and has no 

objection to the proposed 

development. 

Comments noted.  

Environment Agency  

Following several 

correspondence and 

submission of 

amended/additional 

information by the 

applicant, the originally 

raised objections were 

removed. 

Noted and discussed in 

section 5.5 of the report. 

Essex and Suffolk Water  

No objection, subject to 

compliance with the set  

requirements. 

Noted. 

 

7.3 Internal Consultees  

 

Name of Internal 

Consultee 
Comment Officer Response 

Environmental Health 

No objection in principle.  

Conditions about 

contamination, foul water 

drainage and period of 

operation shall be applied. 

Comments noted. 

Economic Development Support the application, Noted and discussed in 

Page 26



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

Name of Internal 

Consultee 
Comment Officer Response 

Team  given that create jobs and 

contribute significantly to 

tourism income for the 

Maldon District. 

section 5.1 of the report. 

Emergency Planner  

The site is located within 

flood zone 3 and a flood 

warning and evacuation 

plan is required to be 

submitted. 

It is noted that a flood 

warning an evacuation 

plan has been submitted 

and discussed in section 

5.5 of the report. 

 

7.4 Representations received from Interested Parties  

 

7.4.1 Seven letters were received objecting to the application and the reasons for objection 

are summarised in the table below: 

 

Objection Comment Officer Response 

The site has not been in use as a caravan 

park for almost a decade. 

This does not change the lawful use of 

the site. 

It is noted that the current application is 

not the same as the previous permission 

that has now lapsed and also the site does 

not benefit from a holiday park licence.  

It is noted that no details of the 

application that the neighbour refers to is 

made in the comments to allow full 

assessment of the comments raised. Also, 

it is noted that the local planning 

authority has no control over the licence 

of a holiday caravan park. 

The building proposed is large in scale. This matter is addressed in section 5.2. 

The development would obstruct a public 

footpath. 

It is noted that the development would 

not obstruct any designated public 

footpath. 

There is an active water vole population 

in the drainage ditch which runs through 

the centre of the site. 

This matter is addressed in section 5.6 of 

the report. 

The development would be detrimental to 

facilities already available in the town. 

No benefit to the town. 

The principle of providing 

facilities/services in association to lawful 

tourism facilities is assessed in section 

5.1 of the report.  

There are existing habitats, trees and 

species on the site which will be affected 

by the development. 

This matter is addressed in sections 5.2 

and 5.6 of the report.  

Impact on highway safety and parking 
This matter is addressed in section 5.4 of 

the report. 

Page 27



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

Objection Comment Officer Response 

provision. 

Environmental impact of the 

development on the area.  

This matter is addressed in section 5.6 of 

the report and in the HRA that has been 

carried out by the local planning 

authority. 

Concerns regarding upkeep of the park by 

MDC and query regarding the use of the 

profit from this development to upkeep 

this area. 

This is not a material planning 

consideration. 

Impact on neighbours due to increased 

noise and pollution. 

The impact of the development on the 

amenities of the neighbouring occupiers 

is assed in section 5.3 of the report. 

Taking into account the scale and nature 

of the proposed development, it is not 

expected there would be a material 

increase in overlooking to extent that 

would warrant refusal of the application 

on those grounds.  

8. PROPOSED CONDITIONS: 

 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three 

years from the date of this permission. 

REASON To comply with Section 91(1) of The Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 (as amended). 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete accordance 

with approved drawings: ATS/537/03; 10955-0020-002; 10955-0001-007; 

RCEF64080-SK002 REV B and RCEF64080-SK003 REV A. 

REASON To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the 

details as approved. 

3. The development hereby permitted shall only be used ancillary to the caravan 

park proposed as shown on approved drawing 10955-0001-007 and for no other 

purpose, including any type of residential accommodation, at any time. 

REASON To ensure that the development would only provide facilities 

ancillary to the existing lawful use of the site in the interests of the character and 

appearance of the area, the adjoining designated nature conservation site and 

minimising flood risk in accord with policies S1, S8, E5, D1, D2, D5 and N2 of 

the approved Local Development Plan, policies EC.6, EN.1 and EN.3 of the 

Burnham-on-Crouch Neighbourhood Plan and the guidance contained within 

the National Planning Policy Framework. 

4. The proposed development shall be implemented in accordance with the forms 

of mitigation included in Ecology Survey Report (dated November 2018) and be 

retained as such in perpetuity.  

REASON In order to ensure that there is no adverse effect to the adjoining 

designated nature conservation site in line with policies S1, S8, E5, D1, D2 and 

N2 of the approved Local Development Plan, policy EN.3 of the Burnham-on-

Page 28



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

Crouch Neighborhood Plan and the guidance contained within the National 

Planning Policy Framework. 

5. The use of the site hereby permitted shall be implemented in accordance with 

the Flood Warning and Evacuation Plan (dated 19.02.2019) submitted with this 

application. The Plan shall be made available to all users of the site at all times 

throughout the lifetime of this permission. 

REASON In order to ensure that the impact from any flood events is limited in 

line with policy D5 of the approved Local Development Plan, policy EN.1 of 

the Burnham-on-Crouch Neighborhood Plan and the guidance contained within 

the National Planning Policy Framework. 

6. No development shall be constructed during the wintering bird period between 

October – March inclusive.  

REASON  In the interests of protecting the natural conservation designations 

and protected species in accordance with the guidance contained within the 

NPPF and Policy N2 of the approved Local Development Plan. 

7. Prior to the commencement of the development details of the foul drainage 

scheme to serve the development shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by 

the local planning authority. The agreed scheme shall be implemented prior to 

the first occupation of the development. 

REASON To avoid the risk of water flooding and pollution in accordance with 

policy D2 of the Maldon Local Development Plan (2017). 

8. Notwithstanding the details submitted with this application, no development 

shall commence, other than that required to carry out additional necessary 

investigation which in this case includes demolition, site clearance, removal of 

underground tanks and old structures, and any construction until an 

investigation and risk assessment has been submitted to and approved in writing 

by the local planning authority. The report of the findings must include: 

i) A survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination; 

ii) an assessment of the potential risks to: 

a) Human health, 

b) Properly (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, 

livestock, etc, woodland and service lines and pipes, 

c) Adjoining land, 

d) Groundwaters and surface waters, 

e) Ecological systems 

f) Archaeological sites and ancient monuments; 

iii) An appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 

This shall include timescales and phasing of remediation works 

 

This must be conducted by a qualified person and in accordance with DEFRA 

and the Environment Agency's 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land 

Contamination, CLR 11' and the Essex Contaminated Land Consortium's 

'Technical Guidance for Applicants and Developers' and is subject to the 

approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON To prevent the undue contamination of the site in accordance with 

policy D2 of the approved Maldon Development Local Plan (2017). 

9. Where identified as necessary in accordance with the requirements of condition 

8, no development shall commence, other than where necessary to carry out 

additional investigation, until a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to 

a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to 

human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical 

Page 29



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

environment has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 

planning authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, 

proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works 

and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not 

qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 

1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation. The 

development hereby permitted shall not commence until the measures set out in 

the approved scheme have been implemented, unless otherwise agreed in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Local Planning Authority may 

give approval for the commencement of development prior to the completion of 

the remedial measures when it is deemed necessary to do so in order to 

complete the agreed remediation scheme. The Local Planning Authority must be 

given two weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation 

scheme works. 

 

Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 

scheme, verification report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the 

remediation carried out must be produced, and is subject to the approval in 

writing of the local planning authority. 

 

This shall be conducted in accordance with the Essex Contaminated Land 

Consortium's 'Land Affected by Contamination: Technical Guidance for 

Applicants and Developers' and DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model 

Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'. The 

development hereby permitted shall not commence until the measures set out in 

the approved report have been implemented.   

REASON To prevent the undue contamination of the site in accordance with 

policy D2 of the approved Maldon Development Local Plan (2017). 

10 Any contamination that is found during the course of construction of the 

approved development that was not previously identified shall be reported 

immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of the 

site affected shall be suspended and a risk assessment carried out and submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Where 

unacceptable risks are found remediation and verification schemes shall be 

submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. These 

approved schemes shall be carried out before the development is resumed or 

continued. Following completion of measures identified in the approved 

remediation scheme, a verification report demonstrating the effectiveness of the 

remediation scheme carried out must be submitted to the Local Planning 

Authority for approval in writing. 

REASON To prevent the undue contamination of the site in accordance with 

policy D2 of the approved Maldon Development Local Plan (2017). 

11. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved Flood Risk Assessment and the following mitigation measures 

detailed within the FRA:  

 Infiltration testing in line with BRE 365. If infiltration is found unviable the 

run-off rates from the site should be limited to 2.4 l/s  

 Provide attenuation storage (including locations on layout plan) for all 

storm events up to and including the 1:100 year storm event inclusive of 

climate change.  

 

Page 30



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and 

subsequently in accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied 

within the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in 

writing, by the local planning authority. 

 

Storage should half empty within 24 hours wherever possible. An assessment of 

the performance of the system and the consequences of consecutive rainfall 

events occurring should be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Authority. if the storage required to achieve this via infiltration or a restricted 

runoff rate is considered to make the development unviable. 

 

The mitigation measures shall be fully implemented prior to occupation and 

subsequently in accordance with the timing / phasing arrangements embodied 

within the scheme, or within any other period as may subsequently be agreed, in 

writing, by the local planning authority. 

REASON To avoid the risk of water flooding and pollution in accordance with 

policy D2 of the Maldon Local Development Plan (2017). 

12. No development shall commence, including any ground works or demolition, 

until a Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in 

writing by, the local planning authority. The approved Statement shall be 

adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for:  

 The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors  

 Loading and unloading of plant and materials  

 Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development  

 Wheel washing facilities  

 Measures to control the emission of dust, noise and dirt during 

construction  

Hours and days of construction operations. 

REASON To ensure that on-street parking of these vehicles in the adjoining 

streets does not occur and to ensure that loose materials and spoil are not 

brought out onto the highway in the interests of highway safety in accordance 

with BE1 and T2 of the adopted Replacement Local Plan, and policies D1 and 

T2 of the submitted Local Development Plan. 

 

INFORMATIVES 

 

1. All work within or affecting the highway is to be laid out and constructed by prior 

arrangement with and to the requirements and specifications of the Highway 

Authority; all details shall be agreed before the commencement of works. The 

applicants should be advised to contact the Development Management Team by email 

at development.management@essexhighways.org or by post to: SMO2 - Essex 

Highways, Springfield Highways Depot, Colchester Road, Chelmsford, CM2 5PU. 

2. Essex County Council has a duty to maintain a register and record of assets which 

have a significant impact on the risk of flooding. In order to capture proposed SuDS 

which may form part of the future register, a copy of the SuDS assets in a GIS layer 

should be sent to suds@essex.gov.uk.  

3. Any drainage features proposed for adoption by Essex County Council should be 

consulted on with the relevant Highways Development Management Office.  

4. Changes to existing water courses may require separate consent under the Land 

Drainage Act before works take place. More information about consenting can be 

found in the attached standing advice note.  

Page 31



 

Agenda Item no. 5 

5. It is the applicant’s responsibility to check that they are complying with common law 

if the drainage scheme proposes to discharge into an off-site ditch/pipe. The applicant 

should seek consent where appropriate from other downstream riparian landowners.  

6. The Ministerial Statement made on 18th December 2014 (ref. HCWS161) states that 

the final decision regarding the viability and reasonableness of maintenance 

requirements lies with the LPA. It is not within the scope of the LLFA to comment on 

the overall viability of a scheme as the decision is based on a range of issues which 

are outside of this authority’s area of expertise.  

7. The applicant should ensure the control of nuisances during construction works to 

preserve the amenity of the area and avoid nuisances to neighbours: 

a) No waste materials should be burnt on the site, instead being removed by 

licensed waste contractors;  

b) No dust emissions should leave the boundary of the site;  

c) Consideration should be taken to restricting the duration of noisy activities 

and in locating them away from the periphery of the site;  

d) Hours of works: works should only be undertaken between 0730 hours and 

1800 hours on weekdays; between 0800 hours and 1300 hours on Saturdays 

and not at any time on Sundays and Public Holidays. 

Page 32



 

Agenda Item no. 6 

Our Vision: Sustainable Council – Prosperous Future 

REPORT of 

DIRECTOR OF STRATEGY, PERFORMANCE AND GOVERNANCE 

to 

SOUTH EASTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE 

9 SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

Application Number FUL/MAL/19/00656 

Location Mangapp Manor, Southminster Road, Burnham-on-Crouch 

Proposal 

Construction of outbuilding for storage of classic cars and 

motorcycles. Formal removal of additional use of property as a 

wedding venue. 

Applicant Mr Mark Sadleir 

Agent Mr Michael Lewis – Bailey Lewis 

Target Decision Date 19.09.2019 

Case Officer Louise Staplehurst  

Parish BURNHAM NORTH 

Reason for Referral to the 

Committee / Council 
Major Application 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

 

REFUSE for the reasons as detailed in Section 8 of this report.  

 

2. SITE MAP 

 

Please see overleaf. 

 

  

Page 33

Agenda Item 6



 

Agenda Item no. 6 

  

Page 34



 

Agenda Item no. 6 

3. SUMMARY 

 

3.1 Proposal / brief overview, including any relevant background information 

 

3.1.1 The application site is an irregular shape measuring approximately 1.9ha and is 

located on the western side of Southminster Road, outside of the defined settlement 

boundary.  The site is accessed along a private track and is currently occupied by a 

dwellinghouse and a number of outbuildings, which have a residential and wedding 

venue use.  To the north of the site is a large pond.  

 

3.1.2 The application site is located on the northern side of Mangapp Chase, which features 

a low-density arrangement of dwellings.  To the north of the application site is open 

countryside and Mangapps Farm and Railway Museum is located to the west.  To the 

southeast of the site is a field which benefits from outline planning permission to erect 

up to 80 dwellings (OUT/MAL/14/00845, APP/X15454/W15/3009772). 

  

3.1.3 The application site forms the grounds of Mangapp Manor, which has a mixed use of 

residential and a wedding venue.  In March 2008, planning permission 

(FUL/MAL/08/00027) was granted on the area of land to the east of the residential 

curtilage to erect a marquee for the use of wedding receptions and functions.  This 

permission was subsequently amended under the terms of FUL/MAL/08/00516 which 

varied the number of guests allowed at the functions and the access arrangements. 

Following this an application was approved (FUL/MAL/09/00007) to allow civil 

ceremonies to take place in the ground floor ‘drawing room’ of the Manor House. 

 

3.1.4 The area of land to the east of the site, beyond the pond was considered under 

application FUL/MAL/08/00516 to be outside of the recognised domestic curtilage. 

However, it is noted that the area of land formed a part of the grounds of Mangapp 

Manor and its residential use.   

 

3.1.5 Planning Permission is sought to remove the wedding venue use from the site and 

revert it back wholly to residential use.  It is also proposed to construct an outbuilding 

towards the southeast corner of the site, to be used for the storage of cars and 

motorcycles.  

 

3.1.6 The proposed building would have a hipped design.  It will measure 8.5 metres deep 

and 15.6 metres wide.  It will have an eaves height of 2.7 metres and a ridge height of 

6.2 metres.  There will be two gable projections to the north and south elevation, 

which will measure 6 metres wide and 0.9 metres deep.  They will measure 2.7 metres 

high to the eaves and 5.4 metres high overall.  There will be a clock tower located on 

top of the roof.  There will be two shutters and one door on the south elevation, a 

high-level window on the east and west elevation and three sets of glazing on the 

north elevation.  

 

3.1.7 The materials consist of red plain tiles, black painted weatherboarding, a red brick 

plinth and black stained window frames.  

 

3.1.8 It is noted that this application is a resubmission of a previously refused application 

FUL/MAL/18/01374.  The reason for refusal was: 
 

Page 35



 

Agenda Item no. 6 

‘The proposed outbuilding, as a result of its siting, scale, bulk and design would be unduly 

detached from the host dwelling and would have a substantial and unacceptable visual impact 

on the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside. This would be exacerbated by the 

substantial increase in built form and the fact the development is located outside of Mangapp 

Manor's curtilage resulting in the urbanisation of the countryside.  The proposal is therefore 

unacceptable and contrary to policies S1, S8, D1 and H4 of the Maldon District Local 

Development Plan, policy HO.8 of the Burnham-on-Crouch Neighbourhood Development 

Plan and the guidance contained within the National Planning Policy Framework.’ 

 

3.1.9 The amendments to this application are: 

 The style, design and materials of the outbuilding 

 A reduction in size 

 A supporting statement justifying the location and design of the proposed 

outbuilding  

 

3.2 Conclusion 

 

3.2.1 The proposal to revert the site back to a sole residential use is not objected to as the 

residential use at the site is existing and there would be minimal impacts on tourism 

within the wider area, which would be outweighed by the reduced levels of harm on 

neighbouring occupiers resulting from noise at the site.  However, it is considered that 

the proposed outbuilding, namely as a result of its scale, bulk, design and siting in 

relation to the host dwelling and outside of the residential curtilage, would result in 

overly large and incongruous form of development which would create an urbanising 

impact to the detriment of the character and appearance of the site and the intrinsic 

character and beauty of the countryside.  Furthermore, the proposed outbuilding, as a 

result of its physical separation, lacks a visible relationship with the host dwelling.  

The proposal is not considered to have overcome the concerns raised in the previous 

application and therefore the proposal is considered to be detrimental to the character 

and appearance of the rural area contrary to approved policies S1, S8, D1 and H4 of 

the Local Development Plan (LDP), policy HO.8 of the Burnham-on-Crouch 

Neighbourhood Development Plan and Government guidance contained within the 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF).  

4. MAIN RELEVANT POLICIES 

Members’ attention is drawn to the list of background papers attached to the agenda. 

 

4.1 National Planning Policy Framework 2018 including paragraphs: 

 7   Sustainable development 

 8    Three objectives of sustainable development 

 10-12  Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

 38   Decision-making  

 47-50  Determining applications 

 102-111  Promoting sustainable transport 

 117-118 Making effective use of land 

 124-132 Achieving well-designed places 

 

 

Page 36



 

Agenda Item no. 6 

4.2 Maldon District Local Development Plan 2014 – 2029 approved by the Secretary 

of State: 

 S1 Sustainable Development 

 S8 Settlement Boundaries and Countryside 

 D1 Design Quality and Built Environment 

 H4 Effective Use of Land 

 E5 Tourism 

 T1 Sustainable Transport 

 T2 Accessibility 

 

4.3 Relevant Planning Guidance / Documents: 

 Car Parking Standards 

 Maldon District Design Guide (MDDG) 

 National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 

 Burnham-on-Crouch Neighbourhood Development Plan (BOCNDP) 

5. MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

 

5.1 Principle of Development 

 

5.1.1 The principle of erecting outbuildings within the curtilage of a dwelling to provide 

facilities in association with residential accommodation is considered acceptable in 

line with policy D1 of the LDP.  However, the location of the proposed outbuilding is 

considered to be outside of the residential curtilage of the site and therefore would be 

located in the open countryside.  As with any new form of development within the 

open countryside, they should only be allowed for specific and justified purposes 

where an applicant can substantiate a need for the development and where the impact 

of that building would accord with policies S1 and S8 of the LDP.  However, 

inadequate justification for the use and siting of the proposed outbuilding has been 

provided and therefore, it is considered that the proposed development would be 

contrary to policies S1 and S8 of the LDP particularly having regard to the visual 

impact that is discussed in section 5.2.  

 

5.1.2 In addition to the construction of the outbuilding, the proposal also seeks to remove 

the use of the ‘drawing room’ on the ground floor of the Manor house for Civil 

Ceremonies which was approved under the terms of application FUL/MAL/09/00007 

and the change of use of the land designated under application FUL/MAL/08/00516 

for wedding facilities and functions back to residential use.   

 

5.1.3 The existing use of the site is considered to relate to tourism to some degree.  Policy 

E5 of the LDP states that the change of use from tourism uses will only be considered 

if: 

 

1) There will be no significant loss of tourism facilities as a result, or an 

alternative provision in the locality can meet the needs;  

2) The existing business/service is not and cannot be made viable; and 

3) There is no known demand for existing and alternative tourism use, and the 

site has been market effectively for all alterative tourism related uses.  

Page 37



 

Agenda Item no. 6 

 

5.1.4 Whilst it is noted that the loss of a wedding venue would have the potential to impact 

on tourism within Burnham-on-Crouch, for example there would be less demand for 

hotel rooms, the impact is considered to be minor.  Therefore, it is considered 

criterion 1 is satisfied.  

 

5.1.5 Whilst no information has been submitted in relation to criterion 2 and 3, regard 

should be had to the fact that the site has always been used in association with a 

residential use and therefore, it is not considered that there would be a substantial 

change of use of the site in comparison to its former uses.  It is also worth noting that 

the existing owner has no intention of using the site for wedding use and therefore, the 

use of the site has already ceased and will not be reinstated in the long term.  This is 

something that can be done without the need for planning permission and is outside of 

the Council’s control.  

 

5.1.6 Consideration is also given to the fact that the removal of the wedding venue use will 

improve the living conditions of nearby occupiers due to matters such as a reduction 

in noise levels.  Whilst this will be discussed in more detail under section 5.3, it is 

worth considering in relation to the principle of the development as the benefits to the 

living conditions of nearby occupiers could outweigh the minimal harm resulting from 

the loss of the wedding venue use.   

 

5.1.7 Having regard to the above, although the criterion of Policy E5 has not been fully met, 

taking a pragmatic stance and having regard to the above points, it is considered that 

reverting back to a complete residential use is acceptable in principle.  

 

5.2 Design and Impact on the Character of the Area 

 

5.2.1 The planning system promotes high quality development through good inclusive 

design and layout, and the creation of safe, sustainable, liveable and mixed 

communities.  Good design should be indivisible from good planning.  Recognised 

principles of good design seek to create a high quality built environment for all types 

of development. 

 

5.2.2 It should be noted that good design is fundamental to high quality new development 

and its importance is reflected in the NPPF.  The NPPF states that: 

 

“The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the 

planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of 

sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps 

make development acceptable to communities”.  

 

“Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the 

opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the 

way it functions, taking into account any local design standards or style guides in 

plans or supplementary planning documents”. 

 

5.2.3 The basis of policy D1 of the approved LDP seeks to ensure that all development will 

respect and enhance the character and local context and make a positive contribution 

in terms of:-  

 

Page 38



 

Agenda Item no. 6 

a) Architectural style, use of materials, detailed design features and 

construction methods. Innovative design and construction solutions will 

be considered where appropriate; 

b) Height, size, scale, form, massing and proportion;  

c) Landscape setting, townscape setting and skylines;  

d) Layout, orientation, and density;  

e) Historic environment particularly in relation to designated and non-

designated heritage assets;  

f) Natural environment particularly in relation to designated and non-

designated sites of biodiversity / geodiversity value; and 

g) Energy and resource efficiency.  

 

5.2.4 Similar support for high quality design and the appropriate layout, scale and detailing 

of development is found within the MDDG (2017). 

 

5.2.5 Policy H0.8 of the Burnham-on-Crouch Neighbourhood Development Plan (BOCND) 

states that proposals for housing development should produce high quality schemes 

that reflect the character and appearance of their immediate surroundings. 

 

5.2.6 The application site lies outside of any defined development boundary.  According to 

policies S1 and S8 of the LDP, the countryside will be protected for its landscape, 

natural resources and ecological value as well as its intrinsic character and beauty. 

The policies stipulate that outside of the defined settlement boundaries, the Garden 

Suburbs and the Strategic Allocations, planning permission for development will only 

be granted where the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside is not adversely 

impacted upon and provided the development is for proposals that are in compliance 

with policies within the LDP, neighbourhood plans and other local planning guidance. 

 

5.2.7 The proposed outbuilding would be situated over 50 metres from the host dwelling 

and would be located outside of the existing residential curtilage of the dwelling. 

Having regard to the significant separation distance between the dwelling and the 

proposed building and its location outside of the residential curtilage, it is considered 

that there would be a lack of visual link between the host dwelling and the proposed 

outbuilding.  It is considered that this would prevent the development having a 

subservient relationship with the host dwelling.  Therefore, it is considered that the 

proposed outbuilding would result in unacceptable urban sprawl into the countryside 

through the addition of an outbuilding, outside of the residential curtilage, that has no 

visual links to the dwelling within the site.
 

 

5.2.8 The outbuilding has been amended in design to have a more traditional appearance 

including the hipped roof and the materials, which consist of black painted boarding, 

red plain tiles and a brick plinth.  Whilst the overall style is of a more traditional 

appearance, due to the fenestration pattern, roof style and gable projections, it is 

considered to have a more dwelling-like appearance rather than an outbuilding. 
 

 

5.2.9 It is acknowledged that it has been reduced in size, however in terms of its footprint 

of 144 square metres and overall height of 6.2 metres, it would still be considered a 

large addition in the proposed location.  This is considered to also contribute to the 

unjustified sprawl of the residential use and domestication of the countryside. 
 

 

Page 39



 

Agenda Item no. 6 

5.2.10 Whilst it is noted that it would replace an existing stable, it would be significantly 

larger than the existing stable and, as stated above, would have a more dwelling-like 

appearance. 
 

 

5.2.11 In addition to the above the proposal would be partially visible from within 

Southminster Road and also the public footpath, further increasing the dominating and 

urbanising impacts on the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside. 
 

 

5.2.12 Whilst it is noted that there are existing trees within the site and hedgerows sited 

along Southminster Road, which would provide some screening of the development 

from the highway and public footpath, it is not considered that the limited level of 

landscaping would be sufficient in overcoming the material harm to the countryside, 

particularly in the winter months and because there are no guarantees that the planting 

and trees within the neighbouring site adjacent to Southminster Road which falls 

outside of the application site would be maintained for the lifetime of the 

development. 
 

 

5.2.13 Given that the site lies outside of the settlement boundary and residential curtilage, 

within the countryside, it is not considered that a building of this scale and bulk is 

acceptable and is therefore, contrary to policies S1, S8, D1 and H4 of the LDP and 

policy HO.8 of the BOCNDP.  
 

 

5.3 Impact on Residential Amenity 

 

5.3.1 The basis of policy D1 of the approved LDP seeks to ensure that development will 

protect the amenity of its surrounding areas taking into account privacy, overlooking, 

outlook, noise, smell, light, visual impact, pollution, daylight and sunlight.  This is 

supported by section C07 of the MDDG (2017). 

 

5.3.2 The dwellings approved under APP/X15454/W15/3009772 to the south of the site 

would be the closest residential development to the proposal at a distance of over 40 

metres.  Given the significant separation distance between the proposed development 

and the adjacent permission it is not considered that there would be demonstrable 

harm to the neighbouring amenity.  However, if the application were approved a 

condition should be applied ensuring that the development remains incidental to the 

enjoyment of Mangapp Manor to prevent any undue harm to neighbouring amenity.   

 

5.3.3 It is also considered that the removal of the wedding venue use will reduce any 

potential harm resulting from the noise impacts associated with the existing use.  For 

example, the dwellings approved under APP/X15454/W15/3009772 located to the 

south of the site are subject to a condition requiring a fully detailed scheme of 

mitigation for protecting the living conditions of future occupiers of the dwellings 

from noise arising in connection with events at Mangapp Manor.  The removal of the 

wedding venue use will therefore, substantially enhance the living environment of 

existing and future occupiers within the surrounding area.   

 

5.3.4 Having regard to the above it is not considered that the proposal will result in 

unacceptable harm to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers, in accordance with 

policy D1 of the LDP.  

 

 

Page 40



 

Agenda Item no. 6 

5.4 Access, Parking and Highway Safety 

 

5.4.1 Policy T2 aims to create and maintain an accessible environment, requiring 

development proposals, inter alia, to provide sufficient parking facilities having 

regard to the Council’s adopted parking standards.  Similarly, policy D1 of the 

approved LDP seeks to include safe and secure vehicle and cycle parking having 

regard to the Council’s adopted parking standards and maximise connectivity within 

the development and to the surrounding areas including the provision of high quality 

and safe pedestrian, cycle and, where appropriate, horse riding routes.  

 

5.4.2 The Council’s adopted Vehicle Parking Standards SPD contains the parking standards 

which are expressed as minimum standards.  This takes into account Government 

guidance which recognises that car usage will not be reduced by arbitrarily restricting 

off street parking spaces.  Therefore, whilst the Council maintains an emphasis of 

promoting sustainable modes of transport and widening the choice, it is recognised 

that the Maldon District is predominantly rural in nature and there is a higher than 

average car ownership.  Therefore, the minimum parking standards seek to reduce the 

negative impact unplanned on-street parking can have on the townscape and safety, 

and take into account the availability of public transport and residents’ reliance on the 

car for accessing, employment, everyday services and leisure.  The key objectives of 

the standards is to help create functional developments, whilst maximising 

opportunities for use of sustainable modes of transport.  This will enable people to 

sustainably and easily carry out their daily travel requirements without an 

unacceptable detrimental impact on the local road network, or the visual appearance 

of the development, from excessive and inconsiderate on street parking. 

 

5.4.3 The existing site provides sufficient parking for the existing dwelling and the proposal 

will contribute positively to this provision.  Therefore, there is no objection to the 

level of car parking provided.  

 

5.4.4 The proposed access would be situated to the north of the private track.  Whilst the 

Local Highways Authority have raised no objection as the track is private, it is not 

considered that the access would result in detrimental impacts on highway safety and 

is therefore considered acceptable in accordance with policies S1 and T2 of the LDP. 

Furthermore, the change of use could result in the reduced use of the access due to 

fewer visitors to the site.  

 

5.4.5 The Local Highways Authority has requested a condition stating that the public’s 

rights and ease of passage over footpath number 2 in Burnham-on-Crouch shall be 

maintained free and unobstructed at all times.  It is considered necessary to impose 

this condition, should the application be approved, to prevent any obstruction of the 

footpath particularly during the development by construction traffic. 

 

5.5 Private Amenity Space and Landscaping  

 

5.5.1 Policy D1 of the approved LDP requires all development to provide sufficient and 

usable private and public amenity spaces, green infrastructure and public open spaces. 

In addition, the adopted MDDG SPD advises a suitable garden size for each type of 

dwellinghouse, namely 100m2 of private amenity space for dwellings with three or 

more bedrooms, 50m2 for smaller dwellings and 25 m2 for flats. 

 

Page 41



 

Agenda Item no. 6 

5.5.2 The proposal would result in some loss of amenity space.  However, there is sufficient 

private amenity space situated to the rear of the existing dwelling which is in excess 

of the required standards.  Therefore, there is no objection in this regard.  

 

5.6 Foul and Surface Water Drainage 
 

5.6.1 It is noted that the applicant has stated within the application form that foul drainage 

would be dealt with via a package treatment plant.  However, it is not considered that 

the building would require foul drainage and therefore, a condition in this regard is 

not considered necessary.  

 

5.6.2 The application form states that surface water will be dealt with via the pond on site, 

no objections from Environmental Health have been received and therefore, this is 

considered to be sufficient. 

 

6. ANY RELEVANT SITE HISTORY 

 FUL/MAL/90/00992 - Formation of landscaped embankments. Approved no 

conditions.  

 FUL/MAL/08/00027 - Erection of marquee (252 sq m in area) to be used for 

wedding receptions and functions for 6 months of the year - May to October. 

Approved.  

 FUL/MAL/08/00516 - Variation of condition 15 (relating to maximum no's of 

guests) and removal of conditions 9,10,11 &12 (relating to access) of 

FUL/MAL/08/00027 - Erection of marquee (252 sq m in area) to be used for 

wedding receptions and functions for 6 months of the year - May to October. 

Approved 

 DET/MAL/08/05074 - Compliance with conditions notification of 

FUL/MAL/08/00516 - Conditions: 6, 10 and 12. Condition Cleared.  

 DET/MAL/08/05156 - Compliance with Conditions notification: 

FUL/MAL/08/00516 - Condition 6 - Noise insulation. Condition Cleared.  

 FUL/MAL/09/00007 - Change of use of room for marriage civil ceremonies. 

Approved.  

 OUT/MA/17/01300 - Addition of barn within grounds of Mangapp manor and 

associated access. Application withdrawn.  

 FUL/MAL/18/01374 - Change of use from wedding venue to residential (C3) 

and the construction of an outbuilding including an associated access, 

boundary treatments and car parking. Application refused 

 18/01374/FUL - Change of use from wedding venue to residential (C3) and 

the construction of an outbuilding including an associated access, boundary 

treatments and car parking. – Refused  

7. CONSULTATIONS AND REPRESENTATIONS  

 

7.1 Representations received from Parish / Town Councils 

 

Name of Parish / Town 

Council 
Comment Officer Response 

Burnham-on-Crouch Town 

Council  
Support.  Noted  

Page 42



 

Agenda Item no. 6 

 

7.2 Statutory Consultees and Other Organisations 

 

Name of Statutory 

Consultee / Other 

Organisation 

Comment Officer Response 

Local Highway Authority  

No comments subject to a 

condition ensuring that the 

public’s right and ease of 

passage over footpath 

number 2 in Burnham-on-

Crouch shall be maintained 

and free from obstruction 

at all times.  

Noted and addressed at 

section 5.4 

 

7.3 Internal Consultees 

 

Name of Internal 

Consultee 
Comment Officer Response 

Environmental Health 

No objection subject to 

conditions regarding foul 

drainage 

Please see section 5.6  

 

7.4 Representations received from Interested Parties  

 

7.4.1 No letters of representation have been received.  

 

8. REASON FOR REFUSAL 

1 The proposed outbuilding, as a result of its siting, scale, bulk and design would be 

unduly detached from the host dwelling and would have a substantial and 

unacceptable visual impact on the intrinsic character and beauty of the 

countryside.  This would be exacerbated by the substantial increase in built form 

and the fact the development is located outside of Mangapp Manor’s residential 

curtilage resulting in the urbanisation of the countryside.  The proposal is 

therefore unacceptable and contrary to policies S1, S8, D1 and H4 of the Maldon 

District Local Development Plan, policy HO.8 of the Burnham-on-Crouch 

Neighbourhood Development Plan and the guidance contained within the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	Minutes

	5 FUL/MAL/18/00381 - Millfields Caravan Park, Millfields, Burnham-on-Crouch, Essex
	6 FUL/MAL/19/00656 - Mangapp Manor, Southminster Road, Burnham-on-Crouch, Essex

